
CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of Caribou will hold a City Council Meeting on 

Monday, January 25, 2021 in the Council Chambers located at 25 High Street, 6:00 pm. 

DUE TO SPACE LIMITATIONS AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GOVERNORS LATEST EXECUTIVE 
ORDERS, THIS MEETING LOCATION WILL BE CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC. THE MEETING WILL BE 
BROADCAST ON CABLE CHANNEL 1301 AND THE CITY’S YOUTUBE CHANNEL.  

1. Roll Call 

2. Invocation/Inspirational Thought 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Public Forum (PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK PRIOR TO 430PM ON THE MEETING DATE 

WILL BE SHARED WITH THE COUNCIL DURING PUBLIC FORUM. Email dbrissette@cariboumaine.org) 

5. Minutes  

a. Organizational Meeting Held January 4, 2021 

b. Regular Meeting Held January 11, 2020 

6. Bid Openings, Awards, and Appointments 

a. Appointment of Member to Cary Hospital District (1 vacancy) 

b. Appointment of Law Enforcement Officers 

7. Reports by Officials and Staff 

a. December 2020 Financial Report 

b. Manager’s Report 

8. Old Business 

a. Land Purchase Agreement with Dr. Carla Chomka for Property (Map 11, Lot 51) 

b. City Rebranding Effort  

c. Dangerous Buildings Status 

9. New Business & Adoption of Ordinances and Resolutions 

a. Reconveyance of Properties for Taxes Paid 

b. Re-establishing a Minimum Bid Amount for Tax Acquired Property at 142 Lower Lyndon 

10. Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

a. City Council 2021 Goals and Priorities 

b. Council Committees Reports 

11. Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under Maine Revised Statutes,  

Title 1, §405.6) 

a. Real Estate Transaction with Dr. Chomka under §405.6.C. 

b. Labor Contracts and Proposals under §405.6.D. 

12. Next Meeting: February 9 & 23 

13. Adjournment 

If you are planning to attend this Public Meeting and, due to a disability, need assistance in understanding or 

participating in the meeting, please notify the City ten or more hours in advance and we will, within reason, 

provide what assistance may be required. 

Certificate of Mailing/Posting 

The undersigned duly appointed City official for the municipality of Caribou City hereby certifies that a copy of 

the foregoing Notice and Agenda was posted at City Offices and on-line in accordance with City noticing 

procedures. 

BY: ____________________________________ Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

Pgs 2-6 

Pgs 7-12 

 

Pgs 13-14 

Pg 15 

 

Pgs 16-39 

Pgs 40-41 

 

Pgs 42-47 

Pg 48  

Pg 49 

 

Pg 50 

Pg 51 

 

Pg 52 

1



January 4, 2021 

21-01 Pg. 1 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held an Organizational Meeting, Monday, January 4, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in Council 

Chambers with the following members present T. Ayer, C. Boma, R. M. Goughan, D. Morrell, J. Theriault, 

L. Willey and J. Smith.  

Dennis L Marker, City Manager was also present.     

The meeting was broadcasted via Spectrum, and Caribou’s YouTube Channel.  

Council Agenda Item #2:  Invocation/inspirational thought 

Pastor Andrew Sullivan of the United Baptist Church in Caribou led an invocation.   

Council Agenda Item #3:  Pledge of Allegiance  

The council led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Council Agenda Item #4:  Swearing in of Elected Officials 

The City Clerk administered the oath of office to Courtney L Boma, R. Mark Goughan and Louella M 

Willey.  

Council Agenda Item #5:  Election of Council Chairperson/Mayor and Deputy Mayor for 2021 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by D. Morrell to nominate Jody Smith for Council Chairperson/Mayor 

for 2021. No other Councilors were nominated. 

Jody Smith was elected Council Chairperson/Mayor for 2021 by a unanimous vote. 

Motion made by D. Morrell, seconded by J. Smith to nominate Thomas Ayer for Council Deputy 

Chairperson/Deputy Mayor for 2021. No other councilors were nominated.   Councilor Ayer was elected 

Council Deputy Chairperson/Deputy Mayor by unanimous vote. 

Council Agenda Item #6:  Public Forum 

There were no public comments.  

Council Agenda Item #7:  Bid Openings, Awards, and Appointments  

a.  Appointment of City Administrative Officers 

 Motion made by D. Morrell, seconded by T. Ayer to appoint City Administrative Officers  

 i. City Manager:       Dennis Marker 

 ii. City Treasurer:     Carl Grant 

 iii. City Tax Collector:    Carl Grant 

 iv.  City Clerk & Registrar of Voters:  Danielle Brissette 

 v.   Overseer of the General Assistance Program: Danielle Brissette 

 vi.   City Auditor:     Felch & Company, LLC 

 vii.   Legal Officer(s)     Rick Solman (General) 

        Bernstein Shur (Personnel) 

(6 Yes, 1 No R.M. Goughan) So voted.  

b.  Approval of Administrative Appointments 

2



January 4, 2021 

21-01 Pg. 2 

 Motion made by D. Morrell, seconded by T. Ayer to approve the Administrative Appointments  

 i.   Deputy Treasurer:    Holli Doody 

 ii. Deputy City Clerk:    Susan Skidgell 

 

(6 Yes, 1 No R.M. Goughan) So voted.   

c.  Appointment of Members to Community Advisory Boards 

 i.   Airport Advisory Committee- postponed, no applications have been received.  

 ii.   Aroostook Waste Solutions 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by D. Morrell to reappoint Ken Murchison to the Aroostook Waste 

Solutions board for a term of 3 years. (7 Yes) So voted. Council postponed appointment of the second 

representative until after further discussion about Councilor requirements for meeting attendance. 

 iii.  Board of Assessors 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by J. Theriault to reappoint Romeo Parent to the Board of Assessors 

for a term of three years. (7 Yes) So voted.  

 iv.  Caribou Utility District 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by T. Ayer to reappoint David Belyea to the Caribou Utilities 

District Board for a term of three years.  (7 Yes) So voted.  

 v.  Cary Medical Center Board of Directors 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by C. Boma to appoint Doug Plourde, Michael Gahagan, and 

Michael Quinlan to the Cary Medical Center Board of Directors for a term of three years.  (6 Yes, 1 No T. 

Ayer) So voted.   

 vi. Caribou Hospital District Trustees 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by D. Morrell to appoint Hugh Kirkpatrick to the Caribou Hospital 

District Trustees for term of three years.  (3 Yes, 2 No Boma, Theriault, 1 Abstain R.M. Goughan) No 

Quorum 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by C. Boma to appoint Doug Plourde to the Caribou Hospital 

District Trustees for a term of three years.  (3 Yes, 2 No D. Morrell, T. Ayer, 1 Abstain R.M. Goughan) No 

Quorum  

Mayor Smith asked Manager Marker how to proceed. Manager Marker indicated that both votes have failed 

and unless the Council reconsiders the votes, another person(s) could be considered for appointment at a 

future meeting. The Council took no further action. 

 vii.   Library Board of Trustees 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by L. Willey to appoint Brianna Carlson, and Kristine Bondeson to 

the Library Board of Trustees for a term of three years.  (7 Yes) So voted.  

 viii. Nylander Museum Board of Trustees 

3



January 4, 2021 

21-01 Pg. 3 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by C. Boma to appoint Heather Hale, Dana Jones, and Philip 

McDonough II to the Nylander Museum Board of Trustees for a term of three years.  (7 Yes) So voted.   

 ix.   Planning Board 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by D. Morrell to appoint Drew Ayer and Eric Hitchcock to the Planning 

board for a term of three years.  (6 yes, 1 No J. Theriault) So voted.   

 x.  Recreation Commission 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by D. Morrell to reappoint Susan White and Matthew Holabird to the 

Recreation Commission board for a term of three years.  (7 Yes) So voted.  

 xi.  Zoning Board of Appeals 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by D. Morrell to reappoint Margaret Pierce to the Zoning Board of 

Appeals for a term of three years.  (7 Yes) So voted.   

d.  2021 Dog Licensing Award 

Mayor Smith picked the winning tag number from a tote containing the tag numbers of the dogs that were 

licensed by December 31, 2020 for the upcoming year.  The winner of the drawing is Wendy Page for her 

dog Baxter.  A $50.00 gift certificate for veterinary services will be sent to her local veterinarian.   

e.  Contract for IT Services with Oak Leaf Systems Inc.  

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by D. Morrell for the City manager to be able to sign into another 

contract for IT services with Oak Leaf Systems Inc. (7 Yes) So voted. 

Council Agenda Item #8:  New Business & Adoption of Ordinances and Resolutions 

a.  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding City Charter Section 2.06 

Manager Marker led a discussion and read Section 2.06 of the Caribou City Charter and what needs to be 

done to avoid forfeiture of their seat and what the attendance requirements are. He explained that legal 

counsel indicates it is up for council interpretation and for the council to police itself regarding which 

meetings must be attended.  The prior Council moved that only Council subcommittees would be 

considered. The intent of having discussion on this point, was so that all Councilors would understand what 

is expected between themselves before committee assignments are made. 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by L Willey to continue as voted in December of 2020, cannot miss 3 

consecutive meetings without being excused and must attend all meetings that you have voting power.  

Manager Marker asked to clarify the intention that liaison assignments would not count, but any 

appointments to outside agencies (e.g. AWS, CEGC, etc.) where a Councilor votes as a board member 

would count. Councilor Ayer indicated the intent was as discussed by the Manager. (6 Yes, 1 No R.M. 

Goughan) So voted.   

b.  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding 2021 Council Meeting Calendar 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by J. Theriault to accept the proposed Council Meeting schedule for 

2021.  (7 Yes) So voted.  

January 11  Monday  Regular Meeting 

January 25  Monday  Regular Meeting 

4



January 4, 2021 

21-01 Pg. 4 

February 8 Monday  Regular Meeting 

February 22 Monday  Regular Meeting 

March 8  Monday  Regular Meeting 

March 15  Monday  Budget Workshop (if needed, 2021 Budget adoption deadline) 

March 22  Monday  Regular Meeting 

April 5  Monday  Regular Meeting 

April 20  Tuesday Regular Meeting 

May 3   Monday Regular Meeting 

May 17  Monday  Regular Meeting 

June 14  Monday  Regular Meeting 

June 28  Monday  Regular Meeting 

July 12  Monday  Regular Meeting 

July 26  Monday  Regular Meeting 

August 9  Monday  Regular Meeting 

August 23  Monday  Regular Meeting 

September 7  Tuesday  Regular Meeting 

September 20  Monday  Regular Meeting 

October 4  Monday  Regular Meeting 

October 18  Monday  Regular Meeting 

November 1  Monday  Regular Meeting 

November 15  Monday  Regular Meeting 

November 29  Monday  Regular Meeting 

December 13  Monday  Regular Meeting 

All meetings will be held in the Council Chambers at 25 High Street unless otherwise noticed. 

The proposed meeting time is 6pm. 

c.  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Collection of Property Tax Prior to 2021 

Motion made by D. Morrell, seconded by J. Theriault to authorize the Tax Collector to accept early 

payments of 2021 property taxes with a zero percent (0%) interest rate applied to any prepayment 

amounts.  (7 Yes) So voted.  

d.  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Manager Authorization to Approve Treasurer 

Warrants 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by C. Boma to authorize the City Manager to review and 

approve all Treasurer Warrants for 2021. (7 Yes) So voted. 

e.  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Authorization to Provide a Tax Club for 2021 

Motion made by D. Morrell, seconded by T. Ayer to authorize a Tax Club for 2021 as previously 

established.  Providing for 12 equal payments of an account’s tax liability with no applied interest 
in October, November and December for club participants.  (7 Yes) So voted. 

Council Agenda Item #9:  Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

Mayor Smith expressed his gratitude to the Council for electing him as the mayor for 2021.  

Council Agenda Item #10:  Executive Session(s) 

5



January 4, 2021 

21-01 Pg. 5 

a.  Personnel matter concerning the City Manager Annual Performance Review §405.6.A 

Executive session was not entered for the personnel matter concerning the City Manager Annual 

Performance Review §405.6.A 

b.  Real Estate Transaction pertaining to the River Road failure under §405.6.C 

Motion made by D. Morrell to not enter executive session.    

Motion failed due to lack of a second.   

Manager Marker provided council with a brief update regarding the homes purchased in 2018 where the 

properties had been cleared to help with the River road project and that Dr. Carla Chomka’s property was 
needing to be discussed.  Mayor Smith asked that discussion about the Chomka property be put on the next 

agenda. 

c. Currently pending litigation personnel matters under §405.6.E 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by L. Willey to enter executive session to discuss the current 

pending litigation of personnel matters under §405.6.E (3 Yes, 4 No T. Ayer, R.M. Goughan, D. Morrell, 

J. Smith) No Quorum 

Manager Marker gave only small details regarding the pending litigation of personnel matters regarding 

discrimination and the Maine Human Rights Commission.   

He stated that there are also other pending litigations such as Gary Aiken vs. Douglas Morrell and 2 Police 

grievances pending for February to present arguments to the state.    

Council Agenda Item #11:  Next Meeting 

January 11 

Council Agenda Item #12:  Adjournment 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by D. Morrell to adjourn the meeting at 7:17 p.m. (7 Yes) So voted.   

 

Danielle Brissette, Secretary 

 

6



January 11, 2021 

21-02 Pg. 1 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a City Council Meeting on January 11, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in Council 

Chambers with the following members present T. Ayer, C. Boma, R.M. Goughan, D. Morrell, J. 

Theriault, L. Willey and J. Smith 

Dennis L Marker, City Manager was also present.  

Staff members and parties with interest in agenda items connected through electronic Zoom meeting. 

The meeting was broadcasted via Spectrum, and Caribou’s YouTube Channel.  

Council Agenda Item #2:  Invocation/Inspirational Thought 

Chaplain Troy Heald led the invocation via Zoom. 

Council Agenda Item #3:  Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Council Agenda Item #4:  Public Forum 

There were no public comments.  

Council Agenda Item #5:  Minutes – Regular Meeting Held December 14, 2020 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by L. Willey to approve the December 14, 2020 minutes as 

written.     

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan - Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 

L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council Agenda Item #6:  Bid Openings, Awards, and Appointments 

a.  Recognition of Jan Murchison for 14 years of Service on the Library Board 

Jan Murchison served on the Library's Board of Trustees for 14 years. During that time, she 

faithfully served through four directors. She used her professional knowledge to assist the 

library with various structural projects like roofing projects that fixed leaks in the director's 

office and the children's room. She assisted with mapping the usable space of the two open 

floors of the library during the pandemic. Although busy with full-time work, family, and various 

community service projects, she always found time to volunteer at the library during book sales 

and various events. Jan is an incredible advocate for the library and will be greatly missed! 

The council thanked Jan and she was presented with a desk clock in appreciation of her time on the 

library board.   

b.  Recognition of Gil Dufour 

It is with sincerest condolences that we recognize the passing of Gil Dufour. Gil was hired onto 

the Public Works Department on November 29, 1968 at the age of 17. He worked faithfully in 

the trenches, on the roads and through the snow for 49 years and finally retired from service on 

December 26, 2017. Although Gil didn’t want a lot of fanfare at his passing, we express 

appreciation for his dedicated service and the positive contribution he made to the City of 

Caribou. 

c.  Appointment of a Law Enforcement Officer 

7



January 11, 2021 

21-02 Pg. 2 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by J. Theriault to appoint Hunter Flynn as a Law Enforcement Officer 

for the City of Caribou.  

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan - Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 

L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

d.  Appointment of Members to Community Advisory Boards 

 i. Airport Advisory Board 

Motion made by J. Theriault, seconded by T. Ayer to appoint Douglas Shrum to the Airport Advisory 

Committee for a term of three years.   

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan - Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 

L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

 ii. Aroostook Waste Solutions (Formerly Tri-Community Landfill)  

Deputy Mayor T. Ayer was appointed by Mayor Smith to be one of the two city representatives on the 

Aroostook Waste Solutions Board.   

Council Agenda Item #7:  Reports by Officials and Staff 

a.  Manager’s Report 

Manager Marker reviewed the Manager’s Report dated January 11, 2021. 

A copy of the Manager’s report is attached at the end of the minutes.   

Manager Marker noted that he would also be subject to the leak investigation and was advised by legal 

counsel to place Chief Gahagan in charge of finishing the leak investigation.  

b.  Draft 2021 Budget 

Manager Marker presented the 2021 proposed draft budget to the council.   

Council Agenda Item #8:  Old Business 

a.  Porvair Filtration Reimbursement 

Council had a brief discussion regarding the Porvair Filtration Reimbursement Contract that the city holds 

and the requirements of receiving the reimbursement.  Mr. David Mika was available via Zoom to answer 

questions and provide the number of people that were employed at the facility.   

Motion made by R.M. Goughan, seconded by D. Morrell to award the 2020 Reimbursement to Porvair 

Filtration in the amount of $14,694.75.   

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan - Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 

L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

b.  Land Purchase Agreement with Dr. Carla Chomka for property (Map 11, Lot 51) 

Manager Marker provided details from the request received by Dr. Chomka.  Manager Marker expressed 

his concern and requested that this be an Executive Session item.   

R.M. Goughan suggested that this may be a Capital Budget Committee item to be looked at. 

8



January 11, 2021 

21-02 Pg. 3 

By consensus, the Council directed Manager Marker to research the process to use eminent domain. 

Council Agenda Item #9:  New Business & Adoption of Ordinances and Resolutions  

a.  Reconveyance of Tax Acquired Property for Taxes Paid (Map 30, Lot 142) 

b.  Reconveyance of Tax Acquired Property for Taxes Paid (Map 7, Lot 040E) 

Motion made by D. Morrell, seconded by T. Ayer to reconvey the properties to the previous owners for 

the amount owed for both Map 30, Lot 142 and Map 7 Lot 040E.   

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan - Yes, D. Morrell - Yes, J. Theriault - Yes, 

L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council Agenda Item #10:  Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

a.  Appointment of City Council Committees. Mayor Smith presented the following appointments for 

council consent. 

 

9



January 11, 2021 

21-02 Pg. 4 

 

10



January 11, 2021 

21-02 Pg. 5 

R.M. Goughan expressed his concern about being on the Capital Budget Committee, which has a tight 

deadline for action, because he will be out of the area for vacation.   

During the council discussion it was noted that you can be present to a committee meeting via zoom and 

it still counts towards your attendance.  R.M. Goughan stated that he would serve as best he could but 

wanted it on the record that he had concerns that he was being set up for failure with his plans. 

b. Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Councilors 

Motion made by C. Boma, seconded by L. Willey to put an end to the leak investigation.   

Council had a discussion regarding the leaked information and weather or not it was confidential or public 

information and how it would be classified.   

Manager Marker shared that he and Mayor Smith had previously met with an MMA attorney on the 

matter and it was explained that Council does not have authority to declare a public document as 

confidential even if it is discussed in executive session. He explained there are a set of State laws called 

the Freedom of Access Act (FOAA) and we have people in the building trained to handle document 

requests. If someone requests a document they should be directed to the FOAA Officer, Danielle 

Brissette. Manager Marker noted that under the FOAA laws there may be some items that would need to 

be redacted before a document being out to the public.     

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - No, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan - Abstain, D. Morrell - No, J. Theriault - 

Yes, L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

D. Morrell left the meeting at 7:51 p.m. 

R.M. Goughan explained that his intentions were never for his resignation to call for an investigation and 

that he just thought that he was doing the right thing and being an adult by admitting his faults and taking 

action.  He had hoped the Council would consider his letter as an opportunity to discuss his standing 

relative to the forfeiture tests and was disappointed those discussions didn’t take place. 

Council Agenda Item #11:  Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under 

Maine Revised Statues, Title 1, §405.6) 

a.  Personnel matter concerning the City Manager Annual Performance Review §405.6.C 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by L. Willey to enter an executive session to discuss a Personnel 

matter concerning the City Manager Annual Performance Review under §405.6.C.  (5 Yes, 1 No R.M. 

Goughan, 1 Absent D. Morrell) 

Council exited executive session at 8:52 p.m.  

No Action was taken.  

b.  Real Estate Transaction with Dr. Chomka under §405.6.C 

Mayor Smith asked if there was a need to go into executive session to discuss real estate.  Manager 

Marker indicated that previous discussion and direction about the Chomka property was sufficient.   

c.  Currently pending litigation of personnel matters under §405.6.E 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by L. Willey to enter executive session at 8:55 p.m. to discuss 

pending litigation matters under §405.6.E.   

11



January 11, 2021 

21-02 Pg. 6 

Roll Call Vote: T. Ayer - Yes, C. Boma - Yes, R.M. Goughan - No, D. Morrell - Absent, J. Theriault - 

Yes, L. Willey - Yes, J. Smith - Yes (So voted) 

Council exited executive session at 9:13 p.m.  

No action was taken.  

Council Agenda Item #12:  Next meeting  

January 25, 2021 

Council Agenda Item #13:  Adjournment 

Motion made by T. Ayer, seconded by J. Theriault to adjourn the meeting at 9:14 p.m.  

 

Danielle Brissette, Secretary 

 

 

12



 

CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   Appointment of Member to Cary Hospital District 

DATE:  January 21, 2021 

 

Mr. Brian Powers has expressed interest in serving on the Cary Hospital District. The District is 

a separate legal entity from the City and the Cary Hospital. Its purpose is to manage lands and 

facilities for the benefit of the Cary Hospital. The board is made up of three individuals 

appointed by the City Council for three-year rotating terms. The Council may make any 

appointments it feels appropriate. Mr. Powers’ application follows this memo.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



14



 

CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:   Appointment of Law Enforcement Officers 

DATE:  January 21, 2021 

 

During the previous Council meeting, the Council considered the appointment of Hunter Flynn 

as a police officer. Upon further review of Caribou police officer oaths, it was found that when 

the previous City Clerk swore in Officer Amanda Baker and Officer Kyle Scott last year, the 

oath was for a single annual term. All other officers in the department were sworn in previously 

without the annual limitation.  

 

Officers Baker and Scott have served faithfully and honorably performed their duties since 

being hired in 2020. It is proposed that the Council appoint Officer Amanda Baker and 

Officer Scott to continue serving as law enforcement officers with the Caribou Police 

Department until removed by the Chief of Police.  

  

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



 

CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:  Land Purchase Agreement with Dr. Carla Chomka for 

Property (Map 11 Lot 51) along the River Road 

DATE:  January 21, 2021 

 

During the previous Council meeting, the Council directed me to identify the procedures for 

possibly using eminent domain to acquire the Chomka property. Attached to this memo you will 

find information provided by Maine Municipal Authority about eminent domain. 

 

In summary: 

• The city must determine that there is public exigency, the land will be put to immediate 

public use and the owner must receive just compensation. 

• The amount of land or rights to be taken must be the least amount necessary for the public 

purpose.  

• Owners affected by eminent domain are entitled to “damages”. 

• The sections of state law that are on point with the subject property include 30-A M.R.S. 

Section 3101 and 23 M.R.S. §§ 3021-3024: Town ways, public easements. 

• Because of the first bullet point, it is recommended that city legal counsel be engaged early on in the 

process so as to build appropriate rationale and avoid or limit damage claims through the action. 

 

Dr. Chomka has requested that the city pay for a survey of her property in order to determine actual acres 

to be affected by the road relocation or purchased in their entirety. It is recommended that the Council 

proceed with this element as requested in order to address further questions of just compensation and 

understanding of position for further negotiations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



43



44



45



46



47



CKG

Proposed New City Logo Timeline - January 2021 

Phase 1 

Education & Buy In - January 
	 Departmental & Council Buy-In (commitment to change/become cohesive)


Announcement 
Press Release


	 Invite Committee Members

	 Set Meeting Date


Research & Planning - February 
	 First Committee Meeting - Brainstorming Session

	 Research Ideas/Plans

	 First BASIC Round of Logos


Meeting #3 - March 
	 Further Brainstorming and Review of Ideas

	 Edit Next Round


Meeting #4 - April 
	 Review Next Round of Logos


Phase II 

Meeting #5 - May 
	 Narrow Down Top Three Choices

	 Final Edits


Insights from the Community - June 
	 Team Booth at Thursdays on Sweden Street for Community Weigh In/Voting


Evaluation - July 
	 Final Revisions

	 Create Department Logo Variations

	 Presentation of Logo Selection to Council

	 

Phase III 

Implementation/Action - August to Dec (Depending on Funding) 
New Themed Departmental Logos 


	 Logo Change Out on ALL Media - web, social , 1301, etc

	 Logo Change Out on ALL Paper - bills, letterhead, envelopes, etc

	 Logo Change Out on ALL signage

	 New Vehicle Wraps/Logos


I anticipate $50,000 to $80,000+ to complete the project on all buildings/vehicles/city branded items. 
Wraps & Signage would need to be put out to bid 

48



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

To:  Manager Marker, and members of the Caribou City Council 
From:  Penny Thompson, Tax Assessor and Chief Building Official 
Date:  January 21, 2021 
Subject: Ongoing effort to eliminate dangerous buildings in Caribou 
 
In December, staff presented the following properties for possible action as a dangerous 
building for reason of: “structurally unsafe, unstable or unsanitary; constitutes a fire 
hazard; is unsuitable or improper for the use or occupancy to which it is put; constitutes 
a hazard to health or safety because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, 
obsolescence or abandonment; or is otherwise dangerous to life or property.” 17 MRSA 
§2851 2-A Standard. 
 
827 Main Street  owner: Jeff Cook (now city acquired for tax non-payment) 
37 Home Farm Road owner: Greta Bielinski 
20 Veronica Street  owner: Mortgage Menders 
864 Main Street, Lot 75 owner: Barbara Rossignol (in Caribou Trailer Park) 
412 Access Highway  owner: Jimmy King  
 
Letters were mailed to all owners and any “Parties-In-Interest” on January 11, 2021. 
Since that time, staff received a letter from Mortgage Menders outlining a plan to 
bring their property into compliance; a letter from Aroostook County superior court 
regarding a bail lien at 412 Access Highway; and two letters (Jimmy King and Jeff 
Cook) were returned and unable to be forwarded. 
 
Staff is requesting that a public hearing, pursuant to 17 MRSA §§ 2851 - 2859, be 
scheduled for the City Council meeting on March 8, 2021. Staff will begin work serving 
notice to the owner and upon all parties in interest pursuant to 14 MRSA § 6321. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE              Phone:   (207) 493-5961 
                 Fax:   (207) 498-3954 

 

   Office of Tax Assessment & Code Enforcement Municipal Building 
25 High Street 

Caribou, Me 04736 

“THE MOST NORTHEASTERN CITY IN THE U.S.” 
Penny Thompson, RES, AAS CMA4  Tax Assessor / Chief Building Official 

E-Mail: pthompson@cariboumaine.org 

49



 
 

 

CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:  Reconveyance of Properties for Taxes Paid 

DATE:  January 21, 2021 

 

The city’s policy for disposal of tax acquired property, allows the previous owners until January 

31 after the properties are acquired to reclaim their property. In order to reclaim the property all 

previous taxes owed must be paid. 

 

The follow property was tax acquired in 2020 and the previous owner has made full 

payment of past due taxes necessary to reclaim the property. As such, it is recommended that 

the City Council approve issuance of quit claim deeds to the prior owner. 

 

Property   Location   Prior Owner   Tax Amount 

Map 20, Lot 22J 114 Albair Rd  SM Trust  $717.39 

 

 

50



 
 

 

CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  

FROM:  Dennis Marker, City Manager  

RE:  Re-establishing a Minimum Bid Amount for Tax 

Acquired Property at 142 Lower Lyndon 

DATE:  January 21, 2021 

 

The subject property was previously advertised with a minimum bid amount of $95,000. It is 

recommended that the Council set a new minimum amount of $75,000. 

The property was tax acquired in November 2019 from Merlin One, Inc. Taxes unpaid on the 

property total $62,182.76. 

Since acquiring the property, the city has been working closely with Versant Power and 

Algonquin Power to protect their various assets in the related buildings. The two power 

companies have now terminated major operations in the steam plant. Algonquin continues to 

house and need significant equipment in the diesel plant. The city’s efforts to maintain the assets 

were primarily to pickle the diesel building in December 2019, which was done for a cost of 

$8,302.48. 

The currently assessed value of the property is $270,400. Neither building is licensed to generate 

power at this time. 

 

51



 2021 City Council Priorities and Goals

Infrastrucutre
(Rank top 5)

Opioid and Drug Enforcement (Ongoing) Sidewalks and Pedstrian Safety

Police Station Design and Referendum Facility Manager Position

Fire Station Operational Upgrades Capital Vehicles and Equipment Plan

Ambulatory Service Contracts River Road Reconstruction

Community Outreach Storm Drain System Inventory

Other: Overlay of Hwys in Urban Compact Zone

Other: Street Light Program

City Hall Accessibility

Other: 

Other: 

Union Contract Negotiations

Performance Evaluation System LEISURE SERVICE PRIORITIES
Non-Union Compensation Policy (Rank top 5)

FBO Services at Airport Collins Pond Dam & Trail System

Tax Acquired Property Strategies Library Business Resource Center

Health Insurance Changes Library Programs

Auditor RFQ Maine 2020 Storytelling Festival

Citizens University Teague Park Splash Pad Improvements

Chambers AV system Gateway Enhancements

Closure of Mobile Home Park Nylander Inventory & Operations

Other: Thursdays on Sweden

Other: Other:

Other:

Downtown Revitalization

Sure Site Program Blight Removal 

Façade Improvement Grants Land Use Survey of Community

Landbank Creation Complete General Plan Update

Rental Assistance Program Weekly Business Visits (Coffee with …)

Waterfront Redevelopment Zoning Regulations Rewrite

Build Your Business Series Business Directory & Newsletter

Neighborhood redevelopment Ribbon Cutting Ceremonies

Small Business Expansion and Retention New Branding & Marketing Campaign

Birdseye Site Cleanup and Master Plan Beautification Committee

New Branding & Marketing Campaign Other: 

Other: Other: 

Please rank within each group your top five ('1' for your top priority and '5' for your lowest)

The following are lists of potential projects or major efforts identified for 2021. Feel free to add any other elements and 

before the January 25 meeting, provide the City Manager your priority rankings within the following areas. 

The results will help guide discussion about major Council priorities for the year during the Jan. 25 meeting. 

(Rank top 5)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PRIORITIES

(Rank top 5)

PUBLIC SAFETY

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PRIORITIES

ADMINISTRATION

(Rank Top 5)

(Rank top 5)

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70


